
1 
 

Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee 
 

Meeting Venue 
By Teams 

 

 
 

County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

 
Meeting Date 
Wednesday, 7 July 2021 

 
Meeting Time 
2.00 pm 

 
For further information please contact 
Wyn Richards 
Scrutiny Manager and Head of 
Democratic Services 
wyn.richards@powys.gov.uk 

 01-07-2021 
 

 

Mae croeso i chi siarad yn Gymraeg neu yn Saesneg yn y cyfarfod.  
Rhowch wybod pa iaith rydych am ei defnyddio erbyn hanner dydd, ddau ddiwrnod 
gwaith cyn y cyfarfod.  
You are welcome to speak Welsh or English in the meeting.  
Please inform us of which language you wish to use by noon, two working days 
before the meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

 
1.  ATTENDANCE AND APOLOGIES  

 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 
 

2.  MINUTES  

 
To authorise the Chair to sign the minutes of the meeting of the Public Service Board 
Scrutiny Committee held on 04-05-2021 as a correct record. 
(Pages 3 - 10) 
 

3.  WELL-BEING STEP 8 - SUSTAINABLE ENVIRONMENT STRATEGY  

 
To receive and consider the Quarter 4 Performance Report – Step 8 – 2021-21 and 
to discuss the Delivery Plan and Performance Report with the Step Lead Gavin 
Bown (Natural Resources Wales). 
(Pages 11 - 20) 
 

4.  POWYS PSB DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21  

 
To receive for information the Powys PSB Draft Annual Report 2020-21. 
(Pages 21 - 50) 
 

Public Document Pack



5.  WORK PROGRAMME  

 
To note that future meetings of the Committee are scheduled as follows: 
 

07-10-2021 10.00 – 12.00 

 
 
 
 
 



Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 4 May 2021 
 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE BOARD SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE HELD AT BY TEAMS ON TUESDAY, 4 MAY 2021 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor  
 
County Councillors Gavin Bown, Mrs A Davies, N Evans, Swanson, T Buchan, 
A Webb and L Rijnenberg 
 
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors  
 

1.  APOLOGIES  

 
Present: 
Neil Evans (Chair) (Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Service) 
Angela Davies (Powys County Council) 
County Councillor Liz Webb (Brecon Beacons National Park Authority) 
County Councillor Liz Rijnenberg (Powys County Council) 
Trish Buchan (Powys Teaching Health Board) 
Peter Swanson (Powys Association of Voluntary Organisations) 
Gavin Bown (Natural Resources Wales) 
 
Observers: 
County Councillor Steve Evans (Brecon Beacons National Park Authority) 
County Councillor David Selby (Powys County Council) 
 
Officers in Attendance: 
Wyn Richards (Powys County Council) 
Rhian Jones (Powys County Council) 
Catherine James (Powys County Council) 
Diane Reynolds (Head of Digital Services - Powys County Council) 
 
Apologies for Absence: 
Ian Phillips (Powys Teaching Health Board)  
Emma Palmer (Head of Transformation and Communications – Powys County 
Council). 

 
 

2.  MINUTES  

 
The Chair was authorised to sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 
15th October, 2020 as a correct record. 
 
Arising thereon: 
 
Link to the Well-Being databank. 
This was circulated to the Committee during the meeting. 
 

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5800/Wellbeing-Information-Bank 
 
Performance Framework. 

Page 3

2

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5800/Wellbeing-Information-Bank


Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 4 May 2021 
 

 

It was reported that the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority (BBNPA) were 
responsible for Well-Being Step 2 and the PSB had been attempting to use it for 
reports. However, there was duplication with systems already used by 
organisations. At the last meeting of the PSB it was decided that each of the 
Step Leads would need to revisit their Performance Indicators / Measures. 
 
The Committee suggested that all Steps should be using the reporting framework 
as developed by BBNPA as having different formats made it difficult to follow. 
Concern was also expressed regarding the quality and lack of information in 
some of the reports. In addition, the Committee suggested that there was a need 
for more clear performance measures against which the Steps are monitoring 
progress. 
 
AGREED that the Committee request that the Public Service Board:  
(i) to consider whether the performance framework is meeting the 

Board's needs or whether it needs to be reviewed.  
(ii) consider the need for more clear performance measures against 

which the Steps are monitoring progress. 
 
 

3.  WELL-BEING STEP 4 - DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE  

 
Documents Considered: 

 Delivery Plan – Step 4 – Digital and Quarter 4 Report (January to March 
2021. 

 
Issues Discussed: 
 
Work with and influence others to ensure improved digital infrastructure for 
Powys 

 Original proposal to work with 3 community sites. The council was actually 
working with 12 communities. Some of the projects were ready and had 
requested vouchers from Welsh Government. Information had been 
placed on the Council's website about broadband connectivity. 

 
Data Integration 

 It had been difficult arranging meetings with stakeholders as the Council 
had been focussing on business critical activity. 

 
Well-Being Dashboards 

 The number of dashboards had now increased to 76. 
 
Broadband and 4G Roll-out 

 EE were enhancing 6 sites in Powys to 4G. The Council was awaiting any 
developments by other providers. The improvements to the Emergency 
Services Network had stalled and there was ongoing dialogue regarding 
progressing these improvements. 

 

 Questions: 

Is the Council reviewing the 
numbers in Powys who can access 
4G 

The Council is assessing those who 
cannot access broadband or 4G 
under the Mid Wales Growth Deal. It 

Page 4



Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 4 May 2021 
 

 

is estimated that up to 12,000 
properties might not have a suitable 
connection but this is yet to be 
confirmed. Powys is the county with 
the highest number of white spots in 
wales and probably the UK. The 
head of Digital Services is working 
with companies to try and get 
solutions tested in Powys. There is 
a need for innovative solutions in 
Powys as fibre broadband cannot 
be the only solution. 
One possible solution could be the 
use of tethered drones. However 
some properties in more remote 
areas of Powys did not have a 
mains power supply. 

Should the RAG status on data 
integration be Red rather than 
Amber 

The Head of Digital Services 
suggested that this should be 
Amber as some work had been 
undertaken on this measure. 

 
Residents Digital Skills 

 This has been delayed due to the pandemic and a delay in the recruitment 
of staff. However digital skills had improved even without support as 
people had learned to communicate with their families electronically 
during the pandemic. PAVO had been active in assisting individuals. 

 

 Questions: 

What is the main barrier for digital 
connectivity 

There are few barriers in Powys, 
which is different to other areas. 
Research has shown that the 
transfer of old technology is a 
barrier for older people and can be 
frustrating. It is better if older people 
have new and up to date technology 
to use. The other barrier is finance 
and the cost of broadband for 
people on low incomes. Individuals 
need support around them at the 
beginning in the use of digital 
technology even though many have 
upskilled in the last 12 months. 

 
Digital Businesses 

 There is a focus in the Mid Wales Growth Deal on digital business sites. 
 

 Questions: 

Welsh Government can be a barrier 
to digital business especially for the 
farming industry e.g. codes sent out 
for website access on mobile 

The Chair suggested that this needs 
to be taken up through the farming 
unions (NFA / FAW). In addition, 
other businesses could be asked 

Page 5



Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 4 May 2021 
 

 

phones and there are areas in 
Powys with no mobile connection at 
all. 

what barriers there were for them, 
and as in the farming example were 
there processes required by Welsh 
Government or others to which they 
did not have access e.g. mobile 
connectivity. 
The Head of Digital Services 
advised the Committee that a Welsh 
Government representative was 
required on this group. 
 
AGREED that the need for Welsh 
Government representation on 
this group be raised with the PSB 

How far are the steps based on the 
needs of communities. 

A draft strategy was developed and 
went out for public consultation. A 
digital study was also issued for 
public consultation. Step 7 (Develop 
a Carbon Positive Strategy) will be 
the subject of a public consultation 
and the PSB is considering how it 
can consult across all steps rather 
than on individual steps. 

It does make sense to try and 
engage collectively. 

Step 4 does try to engage and is 
working with third sector bodies, by 
considering what barriers need to be 
overcome, especially for those using 
third sector systems. The Step also 
considered children who were 
excluded during the pandemic and 
provided mobile connection devices 
so that children could engage in 
learning. However, there are still 
pockets of individuals that the 
Council needs to engage with, and 
this cannot be done digitally as they 
are not online. 

In relation to targeting older people 
to engage digitally, some will not 
want to engage. Is this being 
captured 

It is recognised in the strategy that it 
is digital first but not digital always. 
More people have engaged digitally 
this year but it is not for everyone. 
The Council is also considering 
establishing an Omni channel to 
connect different methods of 
communication with the Council. 
The Council is also looking at 
accessibility and what other 
methods of communications exist. 

 
Digital Environment 

Page 6



Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 4 May 2021 
 

 

 LoRaWAN technology is being assessed by the Council. These are 
sensors that run on a battery which then sends information back to a 
gateway. 

 Welsh Government has provided gateways to the public which can be set 
up on public buildings to test sensors and assess what can be provided in 
Powys. This could be an exciting development for enabled care provision 
and the sensors could assist with enabled care which does not require 
broadband. 

 

 Questions: 

How secure is the data This is what is being tested first and 
it will not be rolled out until has been 
assessed. The technology is 
growing and is being rolled out 
across the UK. 

Is the Council collaborating with 
other organisations once this has 
been tested. For example, there are 
18 towers at fire stations which 
could be used to site the gateways. 

A barrier busting group is looking at 
how barriers can be overcome once 
the testing has been completed. 

How will this be policed once it is 
rolled out. What is the follow up to 
make sure the technology is doing 
what it should be doing. 

A bid is being made to Welsh 
Government to install and evaluate 
the technology. 

There is a challenge to continue to 
have face to face discussions but 
online.  
There are clearly defined actions to 
deliver this step. How will the 
measures deliver the step. Are all 
partners playing their part. Is there a 
scope for greater collaboration. 
There is a question as to whether all 
the resources have been secured. 
Van the timescales be accelerated 
and have we learned from the 
pandemic. 

The expectation / ambition of the 
PSB is to have a digital 
infrastructure to support 
communities which would help 
learning, business and keeping in 
touch with others. Digital is also 
more important for rural 
communities and can provide great 
benefits. However, it is not the only 
solution and Powys needs to make 
sure that we do not get left behind 
with technological advances. The 
project is about getting the basic 
infrastructure right. Some items 
have not been achieved as yet but 
are progressing and the pandemic 
has had an effect on this. 
There is a need to focus on the data 
step and engagement is not totally 
secured as yet. However, the 
agenda has been pushed and a 
barrier busting group established as 
well as meetings with PAVO, but 
progress is not moving easily. The 
Head of Digital Services has raised 
these concerns with the PSB. There 
is a need to integrate data and the 
Council's business intelligence team 

Page 7



Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 4 May 2021 
 

 

has been looking at integrating 
Council, social care and health data. 
There is much more to do and whilst 
£1m funding came from Welsh 
Government for this, additional 
funding will be required to make this 
work. 

Are there any more measures which 
should be included 

The plan has been reviewed and 
some additional measures added. 
Partner participation needs to be 
added to the measures. 

If Powys is only receiving 4G now, 
will be behind anyway as 5G is 
being rolled out elsewhere. 

There is a discussion ongoing with 
BT at present about their plans for 
5G in Powys as there is currently 
only 1 site for 5G in Powys at Builth 
Wells. 

 
The Committee concluded that it was content with Step 4 and the progress that 
had been made to date. 

 
 

4.  WELL-BEING STEPS - HIGHLIGHT REPORTS - QUARTER 4 2020-21  

 
Documents Considered: 

 Well-Being Steps Highlight Reports – Quarter 4 2020-21 
 
Issues Discussed: 

 The Committee would find it useful to receive the schematic for the 
purpose of the steps at each meeting when considering the report – 
AGREED. 

 Step 1 – others have been able to undertake engagement exercises 
despite the pandemic. There is a need for other steps to consider 
innovative ways of engaging. 

 Step 3 – there is nothing included under this step about Safe Routes to 
Schools. AGREED to request that the PSB consider including this 
under the step. 

 Step 6 – Holistic approach to skills and Lifelong Learning  

 There is a connectivity between this Step with Step 7 e.g. a need to 
have a digital structure to assist developing a carbon strategy. 

 There does not also appear to be smart objectives under either 
active travel or developing a carbon strategy. 

 What is being done to replace those traditional skills which are 
being lost e.g. farming, blacksmiths. 

 Step 7 – Developing a Carbon Positive Strategy 

 The pandemic should have assisted the carbon strategy. 

 The Chair indicated that the Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue 
Authority were undertaking virtual visits to properties for fire safety checks. 
The number of annual visits had increased but only a small number of 
these were physical visits. 

 In response to a question about the lack of activity in relation to this Step, 
the Committee was advised that consultants had been engaged in 2020 to 
assist in developing the way forward. The Decarbonisation Strategy had 

Page 8



Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 4 May 2021 
 

 

been developed and was awaiting approval for the consultation phase to 
be undertaken. Welsh Government had originally been leading on the 
Step but had handed this back and it was now being undertaken by the 
Head of Digital Services for Powys County Council as Step Lead. The 
Council had appointed a climate change officer who was responsible for 
the Step. 

 The Committee expressed its disappointment with the lack of progress 
and AGREED that the PSB be asked to review this Step as a matter of 
urgency to speed up the process and so that some tangible projects 
could be commenced. 

 This step also linked across all steps and should not be seen as isolated 
from the others. 

 Some of the steps include detail of how they link with other steps but this 
is not consistent in all the steps. AGREED this should be raised with 
the PSB. 

 
 
 

5.  WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The Committee noted that future meetings would be held as follows: 
 
09-07-2021 – 10.00 – 12.00 
07-10-2021 – 10.00 – 12.00 
 
The Committee requested that the date of the next meeting be changed to 7th 
July, 2021. 
 
AGREED that the Step Lead (Natural Resources Wales) for Step 8 (Develop 
a Sustainable Environment Strategy) be invited to discuss the Delivery 
Plan for Step 8 at the next meeting. 

 
 
 

County Councillor  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



AMBER

Assurances

Step Lead Officer
Project/ Action/ 

Indicator Description Activity this quarter
Implications for 

next quarter Overall RAG status
Main 
Risks

Current and 
planned 
controls

Summary 
Risk RAG

Recent 
assurance 

activity
Step 8 - 
Develop a 
sustainable 
environment 
strategy.

Gavin Bown (NRW) Key action 1 - 
Reconvene 
group following 
Covid-19 pause.

Reconvene core working group (NRW, BBNP, PCC) 
following pausing the work due to Covid-19.  At the 
first meeting the group should consider:
a)	Extending membership to include other PSB 
members and any other organisations that would be 
interested in participation e.g. voluntary organisations 
such as a representative of the Wildlife Trusts, RSPB, 
CAT. PAVO can advise.
b)	Review the objectives, delivery plan and key 
themes in light of the Covid 19 pandemic and 
particularly to align the work with the recovery plan 
for the County and for Wales (recognising that 
relevant learning and potential demands on different 
organisations may influence the detail and timing of 
the following actions for delivery).

Connections made with core 
working group organisations 
and refresh of membership to 
account for role changes within 
partner organisations.  
Proposed meeting date being 
finalised for late April or early 
May.

Minimal. Don't 
expect minor 
delay to impact 
on delivery of 
subsequent 
actions.

Amber Partner 
capacity 
due to 
Covid 
impacts.

Action delayed 
to provide 
greater 
likelihood of 
support as 
organisations 
move from 
response to 
recovery phase 
for Covid-19.

Amber

Key action 2 - 
Review existing 
strategies

Identify the current PSB member’s environmental 
priorities and strategies – and review where they align; 
overlaps/duplication, conflicts and gaps with reference 
to:
a)	PSB members’ organisational strategies
b)	WG strategies (i.e. Nature Recovery Plan, Natural 
Resources Policy SONARR etc.)
c)	NRW Mid Wales Area Statement Themes 

No activity due to focus on 
Covid.

Proposed delivery 
plan sets intent to 
progress during 
next quarter (Q1).

Amber Partner 
capacity 
due to 
Covid 
impacts.

Delivery plan 
updated to 
reflect latest 
position.

Amber

Key action 3 - 
Coordinate with 
other Steps

Integrate actions with Step 7 team (carbon positive 
strategy) and identify any common areas 

No activity due to focus on 
Covid

Proposed delivery 
plan sets intent to 
progress during 
next quarter (Q1).

Amber Partner 
capacity 
due to 
Covid 
impacts.

Amber

Details Actions/Status Risks and Controls

Reporting Period: Quarter 4 January to March 2021 									
Overall BRAG Status of the Step: 	

P
age 11

3



Key action 4 - 
Refine emerging 
themes

Following the review in (1) above, further develop the 
key themes and produce a short narrative for each 
explaining the purpose and importance.  The current 
themes for the strategy are:

1.	Connecting people with nature (recreation, 
enjoyment, volunteering, education)
2.	Reducing society’s impact on the environment 
(reducing unsustainable use, pollution, waste etc)
3.	Ecological & climate change resilience (biodiversity, 
key species, connectivity, pollinators etc) 
4.	Sustainable Use – (ensuring society and business use 
the environment and its resources sustainably) 

The development of our strategy has always sought to 
demonstrate how the sustainable management of our 
natural resources is fundamental to our core goals of a 
thriving economy, a healthy and resilient population, 
connected communities and a vibrant culture.

No activity due to focus on 
Covid.  Dependent on earlier 
actions.

Proposed delivery 
plan sets intent to 
progress during 
next two quarters 
(Q1 & Q2).

Amber Amber

Key action 5 - 
Develop 
priorities

Under each of the above themes – develop key 8-12 
environmental priorities for Powys.  This should 
include lessons from the Covid-19 pandemic such as 
the importance of local green space and connectivity 
with nature, in relation to physical and mental 
wellbeing.

Dependent on earlier actions. Proposed delivery 
plan sets intent to 
progress in 
following quarter 
(Q2).

Amber AmberP
age 12



Key action 6 - 
Incorporate 
Future 
Generations 
Report 2020 into 
strategy

Consider the relevant recommendations in the Future 
Generations Report 2020 and how they can be 
incorporated into the strategy. There are very strong 
links with a number of recommendations some 
priorities for short-term focus are:
•	Delivering year on year increases in biodiverse green 
and blue infrastructure and tree canopy cover in their 
areas and land.
•	Using their land holdings to maximise its biodiversity 
value, for example, implementing ambitious 
biodiversity and green infrastructure action plans and 
becoming pesticide free.
•	Using sound evidence, such as Natural Resources 
Wales’ Area Profiles, i-tree assessments and natural 
capital accounting, to inform their decision making 
and development of plans and policies, demonstrating 
how they are investing in nature in their area.
•	Demonstrating how planning and infrastructure 
decisions jointly benefit people and nature.
•	Increasing the proportion of funding spent on nature-
based solutions.
•	Taking urgent action at a pace and scale to combat 
the loss of biodiversity.

Dependent on earlier actions. Proposed delivery 
plan sets intent to 
progress in 
following quarter 
(Q2).

Amber Amber

Key action 7 - 
Consultation on 
themes and 
priorities

Undertake a short consultation exercise on the themes 
and priorities.

Dependent on earlier actions. None. Due to take 
place in 3rd 
quarter.

Amber Amber

Key action 8 - 
Integration with 
key initiatives

Review and connect with other initiatives in Powys or 
Mid Wales that could align or contribute to the 
priorities such as the Growing Mid Wales Partnership, 
the River Severn Partnership, and the initiatives 
identified at the engagement workshop with 
Community Councils in Powys.

No activity due to focus on 
Covid.  Dependent on earlier 
actions.

Proposed delivery 
plan sets intent to 
progress during 
next quarter (Q1).

Amber Amber

Key action 9 - 
Signal projects

Collect 3-5 or so flagship projects or initiatives in 
Powys from PSB partners and stakeholders. that are 
demonstrating good practice. Use these as best 
practice case studies. Potentially publish and/or make 
available online.  

Dependent on earlier actions. None. Due to take 
place in 3rd 
quarter.

Amber Amber

Key action 10 - 
Develop actions 
to implement

Develop Actions steps as a Step team & as individual 
organisations to implement the agreed environmental 
priorities.  

Dependent on earlier actions. None. Due to take 
place in 3rd 
quarter.

Amber Amber

P
age 13



Key action 11 - 
Collate outputs 
from actions

Collate the outputs from the actions above into a 
strategy document for consultation and publication 
through the PSB section of the PCC website.

Dependent on earlier actions. None. Due to take 
place in 4th 
quarter.

Amber Amber

Key action 12 - 
Identify 
mechanism to 
embed strategy

Identify mechanisms to embed and monitor 
implementation of the strategy March 2022.

Dependent on earlier actions. None. Due to take 
place in 4th 
quarter.

Amber Amber

P
age 14



Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee 
 

Scrutiny of the Well-Being Steps Delivery Plans 
 
In undertaking the scrutiny of the delivery plans the Committee is asked to consider 

the following questions: 

 
a. Does the plan have clearly defined actions to deliver the step, which cover the 

short to medium term? 

b. Are the actions clearly aligned to delivery of the step and will they support the 

intended outcomes (as set out in Towards 2040)? 

c. Does the delivery plan reflect collective action/collaboration, where relevant 

partners are playing their part in delivery? 

d. Have the necessary resources been secured to deliver the plan? 

e. Are the timescales for delivering the actions ambitious enough/ realistic? 

f. Is it clear how the delivery plan has been set in accordance with the 

sustainable development principle (5 Ways of Working). 

g. Have relevant stakeholders been consulted on the plan? 

h. Have appropriate measures been set which will help demonstrate the impact 

the step is having on residents and communities?  

i. Are there any other performance measures which you think should be 

monitored? 

j. Does the delivery plan reflect learning from the pandemic and set out an 

approach to support recovery? 

k. Does the delivery plan identify links between Steps? 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny of PSB Performance 

 
Scrutiny Committee:  

Date of meeting: 

Reporting Period under consideration:  

Iit is proposed that Scrutiny consider the following key questions as part of analysing the performance 

information: 

PSB Performance Report 

1. Overall, does the detail provided in the performance report provide a meaningful and balanced account of 

progress against planned milestones and targets in Towards 2040? Does it clearly articulate; how well we 

are doing?; how do we know?; what and how can we do better?  Is the commentary written in clear, plain 

and understandable language? 

2. Are the BRAG status’ that have been given for the objectives fair and appropriate? Do they align with the 

detail that is provided in the AIA commentary?  

3. Given current and previous performance against the measures, are future targets realistic/ sufficiently 

challenging? Are there specific areas of concern, for example objectives/ measures that have not made 

progress from one quarter to the next? 

4. Are the actions for getting red and amber objectives/ measures back on track robust enough? (taking 

account of available resources and prioritisation). Are the timescales for completing the actions realistic 

and appropriate?  

5. Are the objectives and measures the right ones to achieve the end goals/ outcomes? Are there any other 

SMART measures scrutiny would like to recommend for monitoring?  

6. Any other comments 

 

Comment 
by: 

Comment: Response 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Prioritisation and Governance of Powys PSB Well-being Steps 2020-2021

Towards 2040 : Our Local Objectives:

Powys Public Service Board: 
To oversee governance of the following Well-being Steps 

Lead: Powys CC Lead: BBNPA Lead: Powys CC Lead: WG? Lead: NRW

Lead: MWWFRS

GOLDEN THREAD

Lead: PAVO 

Quarterly Reporting to PSB 

Community Sector 
Response Group 

TBD Regional Learning and 
Skills Partnership

Lead: Powys CC Lead: Powys CC Lead: Powys THB 

Growing Mid 
Wales Partnership

Regional 
Partnership Board

P
age 19



P
age 20



 

1 
 

   

Powys Public Service Board  

  

2 0 2 0 -  

2 0 2 1  

 

Towards 2040 
 

The Powys  

Well-being Plan  

 

 Annual 

Report 

 

P
age 21

4



 

2 
 

A message from the Chair 

On behalf of the Powys Public Service Board (PSB) I am pleased to present our third Annual Report, following what has been a challenging year for us 

all. The report gives a brief overview of what we have achieved in the third year of our five-year Well-being plan and also looks at the challenges 

ahead.  

We ended the 2020-2021 year in a very different place to where we began, with public services, communities, the third sector and local businesses 

finding new ways of doing things, being both innovative and resourceful in their fight against the pandemic.  The partnership response, coordinated 

and carried out through relevant emergency planning frameworks has been commendable and I have no doubt that the effectiveness is in part due 

to the relationships and connections developed through the PSB.  

Alongside our covid-19 response we have continued to progress some of our Well-being Plan objectives and steps. These are at the heart of what the 

PSB is trying to do, to improve the opportunities and experiences for residents and communities in Powys. Projects that began in 2018-19 have 

continued to grow, with new ideas and the continued ambition of partners.  

As we move forward, the PSB will have an important role to play in supporting Powys to recover from the pandemic, and in doing so we will need to 

build on the partnership working that has taken place over the past year.  In November 2020, my colleagues and I held a recovery workshop and we 

agreed to prioritise three of our well-being steps, making these our main focus as a route to recovery, these are; improving digital infrastructure; 

developing a decarbonisation strategy and implementing a sustainable environment strategy. During June and July 2021, we will engage with 

residents through an online survey, and ask questions about their experiences of living in Powys - covering topics from employment and health to 

Welsh language, the findings will be used to develop our next well-being assessment and will provide valuable insight into how the pandemic may 

have affected people.  

I am grateful to my colleagues on the PSB for their continued commitment towards improving the well-being of residents and communities in the 

county. Our Town and Community Councils continue to be represented on the PSB and some are also expected to publish annual reports setting out 

their contributions to the local objectives in Towards 2040. 

We hope you will be interested in the work we are doing and would welcome ideas and contributions that can bring about change that will create 

the Powys we all want now and for future generations. 

Cllr Rosemarie Harris, Chair of the Powys Public Service Board   

P
age 22



 

3 
 

What is this Annual Report? 

This is Powys Public Services Board (PSB) third Annual Report. It highlights work that the PSB has done during 2020-2021 to deliver the objectives in 

Towards 2040 Our Well-being Plan (Towards 2040 - the Powys Well-being Plan - Powys County Council). We launched our Well-being plan in July 2018 

following a comprehensive assessment of the well-being of the local population and extensive consultation and engagement with a wide range of 

stakeholders. The objectives in our plan aim to address the issues which the residents and communities of Powys told us are most important to 

improving their well-being. We published our first annual report in July 2019, followed by our second report a year later – copies can be found here: 

Powys Public Service Board - Our Annual Progress Report - Powys County Council. Our first year of delivery focussed on planning and prioritising activity 

for each of the 12 steps in our plan and considering how we can fully embrace the sustainable development principles in our work. This helped to 

create a clear roadmap for delivering our plan during 2019-2021. 

 

What is the Powys Public Service Board? 

The Public Service Board (PSB) is a statutory strategic partnership established under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Act 
requires key local organisation in Powys to work together and take a more co-ordinated and long-term approach to the issues that really matter to 
the people of the county. In doing so, the PSB must assess the state of well-being locally (a copy of the most recent Well-being assessment can be 

found here: Full Well-being assessment analysis - Powys County Council). It must use the finding of the assessment to set objectives and 
produce a plan designed to improve economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being in the local area.  The statutory partners that make up 
the board are:  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 23

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5789/Towards-2040---the-Powys-Well-being-Plan
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/7509/Well-being-12-steps-progress
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5794/Full-Well-being-assessment-analysis


 

4 
 

 
Other organisations who play a key role in the PSB include the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority, Powys Association of Voluntary 
Organisations, Dyfed Powys Police, the Police and Crime Commissioner, Welsh Government, Probation Service and One Voice Wales.   

  

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 24



 

5 
 

What are the objectives in Towards 2040 Our Well-being Plan? 

 

• People in Powys will experience a stable and thriving economy  
 

• People in Powys will enjoy a sustainable and productive environment  
 

• People in Powys will be healthy, socially motivated and responsible 
 

• People in Powys will be connected by strong communities and a vibrant culture 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25



 

6 
 

Our 12 Well-being Steps 
 

Our four objectives set out the goals we are aiming for in the 

longer-term. To help us reach these goals we agreed an initial 12 

Well-being Steps to focus on delivering in the shorter term.  

These are collective steps, where we need to work together and 

enhance the work we’re doing as individual organisations and 

communities. None of these steps can be delivered in isolation 

and each will have an impact on the others. For example, better 

digital infrastructure will help with providing better care for those 

who need it; improved public transport will encourage tourism. 

The PSB is working collaboratively to ensure we make the most of 

these links and opportunities and challenge ourselves, and others, 

when things get in the way of doing what we’ve agreed we will. 

Each of the 12 Steps is being led by a PSB partner, whose 

responsibility is to ensure that work is progressing as planned, and 

that results are being delivered.  

This report looks at each of the steps in turn and includes 

examples of the partnership work undertaken by the Powys Public 

Service Board during 2020-21. 

  

P
age 26



 

7 
 

 

Well-being Step 1: Actively engage with residents, communities and key stakeholders to promote, shape and deliver 

our vision for 2040. 

Lead organisation: Powys County Council 

Our vision is ambitious, and it can’t be achieved without the help of others. We will need the contribution of businesses, communities, third sector 

organisations, colleges and others to improve well-being in Powys and achieve our vision for the future of Powys. As a PSB, we need to be 

enthusiastic about the vision and what it will achieve and promote that whenever we’re dealing with stakeholders. We will use the vision as a golden 

thread when talking to other organisations and ensure that all those we work with are aware of the vision and what the PSB is doing to make it a 

reality.  

What have we been working on during 2020-2021 to deliver our local objectives? 

✓ We developed and published our 2019-20 Annual Report by the deadline of July 2020, to inform residents of the progress against our well-

being objectives and to promote our vision for Powys.   

✓ We have worked alongside the Regional Partnership Board to explore and cost-up options for a joint engagement platform for partners to use 

collectively. A shared engagement platform was identified called 'Engagement HQ'. The platform is being funded by the Regional Partnership 

Board, therefore is currently being led by the council, health board and PAVO.  

✓ We have been successful in our bid to the Co-production Network for Wales, who were looking for 3 PSB’s (or clusters of PSB’s) across Wales, 

and to work with them over the next 5 years on implementing meaningful co-production and involvement.   

✓ We continued to engage with the PSB Scrutiny Committee as one of our key stakeholders and considered their recommendations in 

developing our delivery plans. 

What have we been working on to support the Covid-19 response? 

✓ In July 2020, Powys County Council lead on the development of a report called ‘Understanding the Impact of Covid-19 in Powys’ which set out 

the initial impact of the pandemic on the county’s residents, communities and economy. The report was shared with all partners and was 

important in planning our recovery.   

✓ The council with the support of partners launched the #SupportLocalPowys campaign in June 2020, which urged residents to shop locally 

wherever possible to support local businesses. Later in the year, the PSB was also successful in gaining £25,000 of grant funding from Natural 

Resources Wales, which helped to continue the campaign over the Christmas period and into 2021. The campaign has promoted collaborative 

working and encouraged residents to support locally produced goods, enjoy local attractions and facilities when possible, complying with 

P
age 27



 

8 
 

Covid restrictions, reduce the impact on the environment and promote responsible and sustainable use of resources. It has raised awareness, 

re-connected residents with the environment and encouraged a reduction in the county’s carbon footprint. 

✓ Powys County Council undertook a Business Survey asking businesses for their views to help understand the full effects of Covid-19 on the 

local economy. Feedback was crucial to ongoing discussions with Welsh Government, Business Wales and partner organisations and 

informing recovery plans.  

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

✓ Develop a Communications Plan to raise awareness of the work of the PSB and its achievements. 

✓ Launch the joint public engagament platform ‘Engagement HQ’. 

✓ Develop our next Well-being Assessment and engage with stakeholders, to inform the next Well-being Plan. 

 

What challenges do we face? 

✓ Ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and Welsh Government restrictions. 

✓ Successful progression of the actions will rely on available capacity across PSB partner organisations. 

 

 

Well-being Step 2: Establish a simple and effective performance management framework to monitor progress in 

delivering the well-being steps and achieving the vision 
Lead organisation: Brecon Beacons National Park 

We need to know if what we’re doing is making the differences we want. The PSB will create a transparent way of assessing the 

effectiveness of our Well-being Steps, as they are being developed, in achieving the vision so that everyone can see the progress that’s being made.  

BBNPA to provide information for this step by 18th June. 

What have we been working on during 2020-2021 to deliver our local objectives? 

What have we been working on to support the Covid-19 response? 

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

P
age 28



 

9 
 

What challenges do we face? 

 

Well-being Step 3: Work with and influence others to improve our transport infrastructure, our existing 

transport links and develop a sustainable and integrated approach for planning and delivery 
Lead organisation: Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Service 

The rural nature of Powys means that frequent travel is inevitable whether for work or leisure and being able to get around Powys and 

beyond easily and safely underpins the 2040 vision. There are cycle routes and bus services available, however, they are not as connected, 

convenient or safe as they could be. People can find themselves isolated because they are no longer able to drive due to age or ill health. The public 

sector in Powys provides a lot of transport within the county and there are opportunities to improve the way we do this, potentially making better 

use of what we have, including community transport and providing additional benefits to our communities. The PSB will work collectively to make the 

case for Powys with national and regional government for investment in transport, including the provision of electric charging points and refuelling 

points for emerging fuels. 

Whilst the COVID-19 pandemic has caused a considerable delay to the progression of this Step, with the majority of partners and stakeholders being 
required to re-direct their resources to maintaining business as usual, it is clear to see from the updates provided below from individual 
organisations, that there have been some key areas of work delivered to the benefit of the communities within Powys. 
 

What have we been working on during 2020-2021 to deliver our local objectives? 

✓ Partners delivered online road safety courses including Motorbike rider engagement courses, Project (EDWARD) Every Day Without A Road 

Death courses and Biker Down courses. 

✓ A drink drive awareness and demonstration event was run at the Sennybridge Army camp. This event was organised to raise awareness of the 

risks and impact of drink driving. A simulated road traffic collision involving Army personnel was live streamed to 160 personnel and was also 

broadcast to an additional 650 personnel. 

✓ Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Service (MAWWFRS) installed an Electric Vehicle (EV) charger in Newtown and staff within Powys have 

been trialling EV vans.   

✓ Work continued on a potential transport interchange in Machynlleth with discussions with TfW/Network Rail continuing.  

✓ A successful bid for funding for the construction of bus interchange within Welshpool was made. 

✓ Powys County Council installed 16 EV chargers into 8 off streetcar parks. 

P
age 29



 

10 
 

✓ Dyfed Powys Police (DPP) purchased 8 BMW i3 vehicles and installed charging points at their headquarters site.   

✓ A biodiversity survey was undertaken at the DPP HQ site with the view of increasing the biodiversity at HQ. They have reviewed their waste 

management contract, with a view of increasing the recycling rates across the Force.  

What have we been working on to support the Covid-19 response? 

✓ Funding from Welsh Government was utilised to aid social distancing within towns by repurposing parts of the highway and in some places 

closing road off for pedestrian use, this allowed some businesses, mainly within the hospitality sector to then make use of the highway to do 

business. This funding was also used to aid social distancing at the Lake in Llandrindod with a pop-up cycle lane being installed.   

✓ 10 On Call staff from MAWWFRS were seconded to Powys Teaching Health Board on a 3 months fixed contract to assist with providing 

vaccinations.  

✓ Partners supported the Welsh Ambulance Service Trust (WAST) by driving ambulances and staff were trained and available to provide mortuary 
assistance. 

✓ Home Fire Safety Checks (HFSC’s) were conducted via live streaming in order to continue keeping communities safe during isolation periods. 

✓ Several of the partner agencies invested in their IT infrastructure to increase the number of laptops available to staff to allow them to work 

from home as per Covid-19 Guidelines.  This, together with better connectivity, has meant that the mileage staff have had to travel to and 

from work and the business mileage of staff in work has decreased significantly, which has helped reduce the carbon footprint.  It has also 

seen electricity consumption reduce across organisations which has further helped in lowering the carbon footprint. 

✓ DPP carried out enforcement of the Covid-19 restrictions throughout the pandemic. 

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

✓ Consult with local residents about ideas to improve active travel to enable safe walking and cycling routes.  

✓ Identify who needs access to community travel and develop solutions for where the gaps are currently. 

✓  Continue to increase the provision of electric vehicle charging points to support our environmental policies.  

✓  Investigate options for investment from regional and national government to help us make these improvements. 

 

What challenges do we face? 

✓ Our response to the COVID-19 pandemic has placed significant delay on our ability to progress these workstreams due to the availability of 

partners. 

✓ Attendance at meetings due to personnel changes within the Working Group have also made it difficult to progress the workstreams.  

P
age 30



 

11 
 

✓ The improvements we would like to make are a significant financial expense, and without investment from regional or national government 

these may not be possible to achieve.  

✓ Many of the people who need the help or service the most do not ask for it, so identifying where these people live so that we can ensure we 

plan appropriate solutions in the right places is challenging.  
 

Well-being Step 4: Work with and influence others to improve digital infrastructure 

Lead organisation: Powys County Council 

Broadband and mobile phone connections are becoming increasingly important as ways of accessing services, information and 

entertainment as well as allowing people to work more flexibly, have a better work life balance and contribute to their communities. We 

know there are parts of Powys where this access is limited or absent and understand the importance of this infrastructure to the 

achievement of our vision for Powys. However, much of the responsibility for this lies outside of Powys, with the government and 

businesses, but where we ourselves can help we will. We will use our collective voice to lobby national and regional governments, as well as private 

providers where appropriate, to get good quality Internet and mobile phone provision across all of Powys. 

What have we been working on during 2020-2021 to deliver our local objectives? 

✓ Recruited a Community Broadband Officer. 

✓ Developed plans to deliver our strategy. 

✓ Updated our wellbeing information bank with all the latest data. Follow this link to see the latest data - Wellbeing Information Bank - Powys 

County Council 

✓ Secured grant funding to support our information sharing development. 

What have we been working on to support the Covid-19 response? 

✓ Our digital response to Covid19 has seen the development of digital systems to support collaborative working such as Welfare support to 

shielding residents and telephony systems to support Mass Vaccinations. 

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

✓ Gather requirements from across our PSB to design our data integration ambitions. 

✓ Design and implement a shared Data and Analytics Framework. 

✓ Increase our publicly available data from 72 dashboards to 100 and promote to all stakeholders. 

P
age 31

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5800/Wellbeing-Information-Bank
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5800/Wellbeing-Information-Bank


 

12 
 

✓ Increase our capacity to support broadband and 4G rollout across our communities. 

✓ Commission a connectivity study through the Mid Wales Growth deal. 

✓ Support the development of digital skills with our residents to reduce travel and protect our environments though appropriate funding 

opportunities. 

✓ Create a barrier busting digital connectivity group. 

✓ Support the development of digital businesses.  

✓ Develop opportunities through digital to help protect our natural environment. 

✓ Collaboratively deliver an IOT gateway network in Powys to facilitate the use of low cost, long life sensors to support all public services.    

What Challenges do we face? 

✓ Current restrictions to our lives in staying at home have highlighted the challenges for many families who have been excluded, overcoming 

these is a significant challenge even with government funding many families are unable to fund digital access. 

✓ Response to COVID19 has delayed our plans for digital transformation and will slow our programme of change, our plans for 2021-22 may be 

affected whilst we focus on recovery. 

✓ Many small businesses in Powys are on the brink of financial collapse and unable to invest in digital growth, meeting this gap is a significant 

challenge where we want to work with our partners for innovative solutions. 

✓ Provision of broadband in hard-to-reach rural locations. 

 

Well-being Step 5: Develop a joint approach to community resilience by co-ordinating existing support and 

building the skills and capacity within communities helping them do the things they can’t do for themselves 

Lead organisation: Powys Association of Voluntary Organisations 

Our communities are one of our biggest strengths, where people feel connected to their neighbours. The availability, expectations and 

delivery of public services is likely to change in the future and our communities are more likely to become the first place residents go for help and 

support. We want to ensure that our communities remain strong, friendly, supportive places that all residents feel able to contribute to, or receive 

from, as they need. 

What have we been working on during 2020-2021 to deliver our local objectives? 

✓ Registered 1381 new volunteers. 

P
age 32



 

13 
 

✓ Placed 254 volunteers within statutory settings to enhance public services. 

✓ Placed 900 volunteers within third sector settings to enhance public services. 

✓ Supported the development of 748 community initiatives that enhance and maintain the wellbeing of individuals and communities. 

✓ Engaged external consultants to review volunteering in Powys and produce a strategy and operational plan for volunteering Powys for the 

next 5 years. 

✓ The shared activity undertaken under Step 5 of Powys PSB’s Wellbeing Plan has progressed via the Community Sector Response Group 

(CSRG). The purpose of the CSRG is to build upon the support and coordination of third sector activity during the COVID-19 pandemic led via 

the Community Sector Emergency Response Team (C-SERT). In partnership with all sectors and agencies, it seeks to galvanise and harness the 

contribution of the voluntary sector across Powys in order to deliver what matters to people, improve the independence of individuals and 

reduce the demands on statutory health and care services. The CSRG also fulfils the remit of the Social Value Forum in Powys, a statutory 

requirement of the Regional Partnership Board by virtue of the Social Services and Well Being Act. The outcomes and outputs of the CSRG are 

aligned with the outcomes set out in the Health & Care Strategy and in the Workforce Futures Strategic Framework. The CSRG is still in its 

nascency, having been formed around 6 months ago. 

What have we been working on to support the Covid-19 response? 

✓ We responded to the COVID crisis by establishing a Community Sector Emergency Response Team that helped to recruit volunteers, support 

community response (including 114 new COVID community initiatives) and placed volunteers to enhance statutory services with a particular 

focus on the Mass Vaccination Programme. 

✓ We established and developed 13 local community support networks across Powys. These are led by community connectors. PAVO has 

recently employed additional development officers to expedite the development of these networks. The networks have taken forward 

initiatives to address gaps and vulnerabilities in service such as hot food provision and day care activities for older people. 

✓ We recruited over 400 volunteers to support Powys’ Mass Vaccination Programme 

 

CASE STUDIES: 

✓ Mass Vaccination Wayfinder Volunteers 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_cM8zM2SAEVJwUpV_Si6UTkWbF127iGo/view?usp=sharing 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/18xHNX7X8JbWgzlep_-iLRu1HAScWzmEA/view?usp=sharing 

✓ CARAD - Moving Forward 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IDgAiCYhKd51Dg4HLpSUV_xKMzD6ReOa/view?usp=sharing 

P
age 33

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_cM8zM2SAEVJwUpV_Si6UTkWbF127iGo/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_cM8zM2SAEVJwUpV_Si6UTkWbF127iGo/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/18xHNX7X8JbWgzlep_-iLRu1HAScWzmEA/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IDgAiCYhKd51Dg4HLpSUV_xKMzD6ReOa/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IDgAiCYhKd51Dg4HLpSUV_xKMzD6ReOa/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IDgAiCYhKd51Dg4HLpSUV_xKMzD6ReOa/view?usp=sharing


 

14 
 

✓ PTHB - Mental Health Volunteers 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1N4Il1b0xEIy3wqGElg2ZFp8Dw5SIaJap/view?usp=sharing 

✓ Stitching 4 Superheroes 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1IzvltTE0fzsq1wHQldrqACYz8nvgCBjKa8P5D7LlyTw/edit?usp=sharing 

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

✓ Consolidate the CSRG operational and governance arrangements. 

✓ Further develop and strengthen the local community support networks. 

✓ Work together to respond to the gaps in service and community needs identified via the local community support networks. 

✓ Further promote and nurture volunteering in Powys, both formal and informal. 

✓ Consider the adoption and implementation of the proposed 5 year strategy for volunteering, the 3-year implementation plan and the 
associated financial resourcing plan. 

 

What challenges do we face? 

✓ Volunteer fatigue. 

✓ Inadequate or short-term resourcing of volunteering infrastructure and support. 

✓ Insufficient coordination of volunteering support among partner agencies. 

 

Well-being Step 6: Develop a holistic approach to skills and lifelong learning which offers a range of formal and 

informal opportunities, including apprenticeships and traineeships 

Lead organisation: Powys County Council 

Studying at university or college isn’t the only way to gain the skills needed for work and the organisations and businesses of the future 
will need skilled people to work in them. We could provide opportunities for specialist training to meet those needs enabling young 
people to continue to live in Powys and widening their career prospects. We could attract people to the county by being a centre of excellence for 
health care, environmental work or renewables, possibly creating a higher education establishment in Powys. We also want to develop opportunities 
across the county that will support learners, of whatever age or ability, whether retraining or learning for fun - combating loneliness and isolation. 
This will also help the economy, building on existing sectors and developing new ones where Powys can be at the forefront of innovation.  

 

P
age 34

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1N4Il1b0xEIy3wqGElg2ZFp8Dw5SIaJap/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1N4Il1b0xEIy3wqGElg2ZFp8Dw5SIaJap/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1N4Il1b0xEIy3wqGElg2ZFp8Dw5SIaJap/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1IzvltTE0fzsq1wHQldrqACYz8nvgCBjKa8P5D7LlyTw/edit?usp=sharing


 

15 
 

What have we been working on during 2020-2021 to deliver our local objectives? 

✓ Recruitment campaign for an Interim Chair of the Board, Board members and a programme manager for the Regional Skills Partnership (RSP). 

✓ Online Careers Festival arranged by Careers Wales on 10 March for learners across Powys and Ceredigion. This event was bilingual.  

✓ Collaborative partnership working across north and south Powys sixth forms.  

✓ Informal stakeholder engagement (January – March 2021) has helped to evolve and shape the Post-16 proposals.  

✓ Initial learner focus groups have been held with Ysgol Llanfyllin and Ysgol Uwchradd Caereinion 6th Form representatives.  

✓ 80 apprenticeship applications received.   

✓ Meeting held with the Employer Liaison Officer to consider possible opportunities of identifying apprenticeship positions external to Powys 

County Council (PCC).  

✓ Additional support, such as CV writing and interview techniques, is being offered to those PCC apprentices whose apprenticeships are coming 

to an end shortly, to enable them to secure employment either internally or externally.  

✓ Information regarding the benefits of apprenticeships and the Welsh Government Employers Incentive was published during National 

Apprenticeship week.  

✓ Videos were created with past apprentices so that they can be used when undertaking awareness raising sessions in schools. An example is 

available on the PCC Apprenticeships internet page https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/989/Apprenticeships  

✓ Initial meeting of the Neath Port Talbot (NPT) Learning Skills Network (LSN) and Powys Adult and Community Learning (ACL) Management 

Group on 19 March 2021, following a decision to amalgamate the previous separate meetings to extend and consolidate collaborative 

working. 

What have we been working on to support the Covid-19 response? 

✓ The provision of an online Careers Festival provided learners with an opportunity to hear from industry experts, find out more about the 
world of work and take part in live Q&As with employers, despite the lockdown restrictions that were in place.  

 

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

✓ Post-16 proposals to be presented to PCC Cabinet in May 2021.  

✓ Establishment of Post-16 Strategic Management Board and Operational Management Boards by June 2021.  

✓ Conclude recruitment of RSP Chair, Board Members and support staff by June 2021.  

✓ Develop a RSP framework for action by December 2021 and a detailed work programme by March 2022.  

✓ Online transition event for KS4 / KS5 learners to be fully aware of choices and possible pathwayss by June 2021.  

P
age 35

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/989/Apprenticeships


 

16 
 

 

What challenges do we face? 

✓ The pandemic has been a challenging environment in which to deliver against the skills agenda, however collaborative working has been 

strong and priorities such as the Post-16 agenda have been moved forward at pace. 

 

 

 

Well-being Step 7: Develop a carbon positive energy strategy that maximises green energy production 

Lead organisation: Welsh Government were leading on this for the main part of 2020-21, but then leadership was transferred to Powys 

County Council in the last quarter of the year.  

Powys has an abundance of potential renewable energy sources. As well as providing green energy this can also provide jobs, skills and 
financial benefits that will contribute to making our communities more resilient. The diverse nature of renewable opportunities could support 
research and skills development, with Powys becoming a centre of excellence in the renewable energy field. By contributing to a greener energy 
infrastructure we would also be helping to mitigate the impacts of potentially damaging climate change in Powys and beyond. 
 

What have we been working on during 2020-2021?  

✓ Development of a vision for a Carbon Positive Powys and identify priority areas for intervention. 

✓ Preparation of models and scenarios to illustrate the change required to achieve a Carbon Positive Powys by 2040. 

✓ Engagement on the scenarios and opportunities with the businesses, citizens and organisations of Powys. 

✓ Preparation of a draft decarbonisation strategy for submission to the PSB and analysis of the draft strategy at working group level.   

✓ Change in workstream lead from Welsh Government to Powys County Council.  

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

✓ Gain approval for the draft strategy to undergo public consultation. 

✓ Consultation and engagement with Powys communities and stakeholders. 

✓ Strategy completed and adopted. 

P
age 36



 

17 
 

✓ Collate baseline information from localities in Powys.  

✓ Provide advice and guidance on place-based decarbonisation. 

What challenges do we face?  

✓ COVID-19 has slowed our progress and may impact upon the level of engagement of some stakeholders.  

✓ A rapidly changing policy context. New data has been provided by the committee on climate change (Dec-20) since the consultants did their 

analysis. New Welsh Government targets on net zero (March-21) and a host of policy changes at Welsh, UK and international levels pre COP-

26. 

✓ We are already seeing the impacts of climate change in our county. 

✓ Given the size of Powys and the increasing interest in climate change, effective stakeholder engagement could be challenging. We will look at 

innovative solutions to reaching as wide an audience as possible. 

 

Well-being Step 8: Develop a sustainable environment strategy: by strengthening activity to deliver the 

sustainable management of Powys’ natural resources through coordinated conservation work and actions 

underpinning the Nature Recovery Plan and Natural Resources Wales Area Statement(s) 

Lead organisation: Natural Resources Wales 

Our environment is fundamental in sustaining life be it through food production, the supply of water, the biodiverse habitats and species which 
enable natural processes to function, or for our physical and mental health and well-being. We want to ensure that Powys’ diverse natural 
environments are in good condition and can withstand pressures including climate change in years to come. The quality of Powys’s natural 
environment sustains the local economy through a vibrant agricultural sector, forestry and through tourism but is also precious in its own right 
through all of the life it supports and for the natural landscapes we enjoy. We will need to work with landowners and managers, conservation 
organisations, communities and volunteers to identify how best to conserve and enhance Powys’ natural resources and environment for future 
residents and visitors. 
 

What have we been working on during 2020-2021 to deliver our local objectives? 

P
age 37



 

18 
 

✓ Recognising the prolonged impacts of Covid-19 on PSB partners, specific work on this step was paused for a longer period than was expected 

at the time of the last annual report, but has recently been recommenced. We have used the opportunity to both review the scope and intent 

of the step, and those involved in its delivery to better reflect the needs of the environment and people of Powys. 

✓ The core group has been reconvened and we are now inviting other key partners to participate. 

✓ Since the publishing of the Mid Wales Area Statement there has been ongoing stakeholder engagement to further develop understanding of 

the themes and priorities. 

What have we been working on to support the Covid-19 response? 

✓ The pandemic and associated constraints on the public have seen significant and changing pressures arising from the demands for local and 
wider visitor access to green spaces.  Whilst this has been a real positive in many regards in opening the eyes of people to the natural 
environment available on their doorsteps, pressure on ‘honey pot’ sites has been significant and partners have worked together to seek to 
enable appropriate access and manage the impact of large visitor numbers and isolated anti social behaviour at sensitive sites.  

 

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

✓ This year is key for development of the strategy and identification of key areas for maximising individual and collective delivery of our 
activities to better achieve sustainable management of natural resources in Powys. 

✓ Analysis of existing policies and partnerships will be undertaken to ensure improved coordination and efficient use of resources and identify 
potential gaps where additional interventions are required. 

 

What challenges do we face? 

✓ Whilst partners will continue to see direct and indirect disruption from the response to and recovery from Covid19, the disruptive changes for 

the public and public services may allow us to explore opportunities that were not thought viable prior to the pandemic. 

✓ This year provides increased global focus on the importance of this well-being step with the 2021 United Nations Climate Change Conference 

(COP26) being held in Glasgow in November 2021 and the United Nations Biodiversity Conference (COP15) being held in October 2021. 

P
age 38



 

19 
 

 

Well-being Step 9: Undertake market research and establish an effective infrastructure to support active 

enjoyment of the environment and adventure tourism  

Well-being Step 10: Develop a strong brand to promote and attract inward investment into Powys 

Lead organisation: Powys County Council 

Our environment is one of our biggest assets providing opportunities for a range of outdoor activities, from walking to potholing, 
kayaking to climbing. We want to make the most of our assets and take advantages of those opportunities. Tourism is also a big part of 
the local economy which offers opportunities for growth, though increased visitor spend and by creating new activities and attractions. 
We will need to work with businesses, existing ones and those just starting up, to identify the best options for creating new activities and 
attractions in Powys. 
 
Powys has some unique attractions, amazing landscapes, safe and welcoming communities and space to breathe. We also have a thriving food and 
festival market. If Powys is to be the place we want it to be in 2040 we need to promote Powys and its businesses, in Wales and beyond, so that 
businesses chose to invest here because they can get a premium for their products and people chose to live and work here. 
 

The Mid Wales Growth Deal has been reinforced as the priority activity under which Well-being Steps 9 and 10 will be channelled in the coming 
years, and its progress towards achieving full deal agreement by March 2022 has been encouraging. Developing the region’s infrastructure across the 
priority economic sectors will see huge benefits to Powys over the 10-year lifespan of the Growth Deal and beyond.   
 

What have we been working on during 2020-2021 to deliver our local objectives?  

✓ The Mid Wales Growth Deal Heads of Terms was signed by UK and Welsh Government in December 2020. The signing demonstrates a 
commitment by both governments, alongside Powys and Ceredigion County Councils to work together to deliver a deal to support the 
economy of the region. It also commits both the Welsh and UK Governments to back the growth deal with a £55m investment each. The Mid 
Wales Growth Deal portfolio business case is being developed and moving forward, the activities of Wellbeing Steps 9 and 10 will be 
developed through this prioritised workstream.  

✓ ENRaW (Enabling Natural Resources and Wellbeing) funding for Canals, Communities and Wellbeing Project, to develop infrastructure along 
Powys’ canal-side corridors over the next 3 years. Working in partnership with BBNP and CRT and other key stakeholders. 

✓ Delivery of the Welsh Government funded Wales Way Project to promote the Cambrian Way (A470) route through Wales.  

P
age 39



 

20 
 

✓ The Council’s Communications team led on a #SupportLocalPowys summer campaign encouraging people to support local businesses/high 
streets, followed by a 2020 Christmas campaign led by the Tourism team profiling 200 Powys businesses. 

 

What have we been working on to support the Covid-19 response? 

✓ £1.8m Powys Covid-19 Recovery Fund announced in March 2021 to support county wide recovery initiatives over the next 2 years. 
✓ Local Resilience Forum Tourism Sub-Group - planning and co-ordination between key agencies to support communities and mitigate negative 

impacts as visitors return, in particular to busier honey-pot sites.   
✓ Business Support was prioritised as a business critical activity for the Council, and work is ongoing to help businesses navigate their way 

thorugh the operational changes put in place to contain the Covid-19 pandemic, and the range of support mechanisms available to various 
business sectors.  

✓ Town Centre alterations and grant support to create safe, open and inviting high streets and maximise outdoor seating for hospitality 
businesses 

✓ Management of the Visitor Economy Hardship Fund to ensure key Council services and popular visitor sites can effectively manage the 
impacts of returning visitors in a way that ensures a postive visitor experience and alleviates concerns of local communities.   

✓ Active participation in the Wales tourism marketing and research groups to understand and implement key safety messages, and to monitor 
consumer trends and sentiment as restrictions ease and people are allowed to travel freely and enjoy leisure activities.   

 

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

✓ Finalise the first phase projects and programmes within the Mid Wales Growth Deal Portfolio by December 2021. 
✓ Achieve full deal agreement from UK and Welsh Goverment for the Mid Wales Growth Deal by March 2022. 
✓ Maximise funding from UK and Welsh Governments, e.g. Levelling Up Fund, Community Renewal Fund, Transforming Towns Fund. 
✓ Complete a new Mid Wales Regional Strategic Tourism action plan by December 2021. 
✓ Complete Year 1 delivery of the ENRaW funded Canals, Communites and Wellbeing Project. 
✓ Liaise with Welsh Government Major Events Unit to attract new events and audiences to Powys from 2022 onwards. 

 

What challenges do we face? 

✓ COVID-19 has and will continue to have a significant impact on the delivery of Steps 9 and 10. The loss of visitor revenue in 2020 is estimated 
to be around 65%, and it is expected to be 3-5 years before the visitor economy returns to pre Covid-19 levels.  

P
age 40



 

21 
 

✓ Pressure on small rural businesses in Powys has been extremely difficult, and ongoing support for businesses is needed to help ensure 
confidence and key markets return as quickly as possible for a wide range of Powys products and services.  

✓ EU Transitional arrangements remain a source of uncertainty for some Powys businesses, particularly those trading with the EU. 
 

Well-being Step 11: Implement more effective structures and processes that enable multiagency community 

focused response to wellbeing, early help and support 

Well-being Step 12: Develop our organisations’ capacity to improve emotional health and well-being within all 

our communities 

Lead organisation: Powys Teaching Health Board  

We all want to continue living in our own homes for as long as possible. However, we may need help to do so, whether informally from 
friends and neighbours or more formal support such as domiciliary care. Many people who live in Powys receive services from a range of 
departments and organisations. We want to work together across organisations, partners and specialisms to make it easier for you to 
access the most appropriate support for your needs by whoever is best placed to do that. 
 
Emotional health is as important to well-being as physical health. However mental and emotional ill health is not as obvious sometimes as physical 
illness. The public sector in Powys employs a lot of people and we want to give them the skills to support each other, their families, friends, their 
neighbours and communities. We already have strong and supportive communities and we feel that promoting emotional well-being will make them 
even better places to live. 
 
Steps 11 and 12 of the PSB Wellbeing Plan have been deployed via the North Powys Wellbeing Programme.   

What have we been working on during 2020-2021 to deliver our local objectives? 

✓ Finalised the Programme Business case for the Multi-agency Wellbeing Campus, this was submitted to Welsh Government on 6th November 

2020. 

✓ A range of engagement activities were carried out with a number of teams, services and individuals – their plans shared with a view to 

increasing collaborative working / multi-agency working in Newtown. 

✓ Commenced more detailed service planning and modelling to support investment in a multi-agency well-being campus. 

✓ Set priorities, objectives and targets within our 21 -22 delivery plan. 

P
age 41



 

22 
 

✓ Worked intensively with our Acceleration for Change project leads in order to support developing business cases that meet the needs of 

communities from both a clinical and wellbeing perspective. 

✓ Worked with our Acceleration for Change Leads developing key indicators and milestones, in order to meet Welsh Government, 

Transformation Funding requirements. 

✓ Signposted community connectors as the first port of call for all early help and support. 

What have we been working on to support the Covid-19 response? 

✓ Sharing examples of good practice identified in Newtown, for example - Newtown Network, with a view to roll out further.  

✓ Collating baseline data to support the scoping of the Community Wellbeing Hub. 

✓ A review has been carried out of the Integrated Model of Care and Wellbeing in light of COVID-19. 

✓ Re-focused the programme to embed learning from COVID-19 following robust evaluation across the partnership. 

✓ Identified areas to accelerate change to support recovery from COVID-19 and support delivery of the new Integrated Model of Care and 

Wellbeing. 

✓ Supported with the development of systems and processes to allow for further joint working, for example - Attend Anywhere. 

What do we plan to do in 2021-2022? 

✓ Embed case studies of good practice into communities. 

✓ Support communities to deliver services and activities jointly. 

✓ Begin to develop service plans for the Community Well-being Hub. 

✓ Begin to report synergies and integrated working opportunities, to inform Outcomes/ Benefits Framework. 

✓ Consider joint commissioning approaches / models. 

✓ Develop plans that offer a range of community activities in the community. 

✓ Delivery of accelerated projects in communities and support them to become self-sustaining. 

What challenges do we face? 

✓ Engagement activities face to face with communities. 

 

P
age 42



 

23 
 

 

Five ways of working  

How are we doing things more sustainably? 

We have continued to embrace sustainable working practices as part of planning and delivering each of our steps. We 

also recognise that we still have a long journey ahead to ensure this way of working is fully adopted and embedded. 

1. How are we balancing short term needs with planning for the longer term?  

Our long-term ambitions are set out in our Towards 2040 Plan and are prioritised into four key objectives. The 12 
Steps we are taking in the shorter term can be seen as steppingstones for reaching our ambitions. For example, we’ve started work on improving 
our digital infrastructure because the way we work and live our lives today is changing rapidly and will continue to do so into the future, especially 
as working from home becomes the norm for many. Digital technologies are having a big impact on the way we connect with each other, receive 
information and access a variety of services, and the range of digital options presents us with exciting opportunities to deliver for our residents. 
We know we need to provide opportunities to improve the digital skills of our residents to improve inclusion for all in the longer term. Our well-
being information bank continues to be updated with the latest data on economic, cultural, social and environmental topics and we use this data 
to understand trends and needs. The pandemic has made us think differently about the way we live our lives and the way people want services 
delivered and this is why we have continued to update our delivery plans throughout the year to reflect new opportunities.  
 

2. How are we involving people (with an interest) in making decisions? 

We recognise that the involvement of our communities and key stakeholders must be at the heart of the work we are doing and that is why one of 

our Well-being Steps is all about actively engaging with our residents. Over the past year, engagement has been minimal, however as we start to 

recover from the pandemic and begin the development of our next well-being assessment, engagement with stakeholders is going to be critical to 

understand what matters to people and using their feedback to influence the decisions we make. Throughout the year our PSB meetings are 

available for members of the public to view/ attend and PSB meeting papers and minutes are published on the Council’s website.  

3. How are steps being delivered in collaboration with others? 

 

While each of our 12 Well-being Steps are being led by an individual organisation, a number of delivery groups have been set up to manage the 

work and these have representation from a variety of organisations (public, private and third sector). Work has also been undertaken to further 

develop collaboration with Town and Community Councils and ensure integration between the wider PSB plans and local plans. Many partners on 

P
age 43



 

24 
 

the PSB also sit on Regional Partnership Board, which helps to ensure we are working towards the same vision for Powys. We also collaborate with 

partners outside of Powys and learn from what is working well elsewhere. 

 

4. How are we ensuring our plans are integrated? This means considering the impact of the Steps on the 7 Well-being goals, on each other and on 

other plans. 

 

Where possible we are ensuring that our plans at a PSB level are integrated with the plans and objectives of individual partners organisations and 

with other local and regional partnerships. This will help ensure that we are all working towards the same vision and that there is a clear golden 

thread running between our plans. A well-being planning and delivery group, made up of officers from all PSB partners meets throughout the year 

to discuss progress against our well-being steps and to look for opportunities for better integration. Where possible, we are also looking at 

solutions for integrating our data to provide information on the most effective collaborative approach to meet the needs of our residents, 

especially those most vulnerable. 

 

5. How are we preventing problems happening in the first place or getting worse? 

Prevention continues to be an underpinning principle across all our Well-being Steps but is more clearly evident in some than others. For example, 

our step to develop a carbon positive strategy will ensure action to mitigate the risks of climate change and will contribute to the well-being of 

future generations. Working together on decarbonisation, rather than individually, will make a bigger difference to emissions in Powys and we can 

influence our communities to join in. Our steps to improve transport and digital infrastructure also aim to prevent unnecessary or cleaner travel. 

And our step around lifelong learning and skills aims to prevent unemployment, poverty and improved well-being. 

 

 

Seven Well-being Goals 

How does Powys fair against the National Well-being indicators? 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 required Welsh Ministers to set national indicators to assess progress towards achieving the 7 

Well-being Goals. Outlined below are some of the key indicators, which are most relevant to our four objectives. Based on the most recent data 

available, they show the level of progress in Powys compared to Wales as a whole. 

P
age 44

https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-wales-act-2015-guidance


 

25 
 

 

People in Powys will experience a stable and thriving economy  
 
 
 

Indicator  Wales Powys Date information 
published 

Gross Value Added (GVA) per hour worked (relative to UK 
average) 100.6 92.7 2018 

Gross Disposable Household Income per head 81 86.7 2018 

Percentage of people moderately or very satisfied with their 
jobs. 82% 85% 2019-2020 

Percentage of people in employment.    
72.8% 75.9% 

Year end Dec 
2020 

 
 

 
 
 
People in Powys will enjoy a sustainable and productive environment  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
People in Powys will be healthy, socially motivated and responsible 
 
 

Indicator  Wales Powys Date information 
published 

Amount of waste generated that is not recycled, per person 173kg 141kg 2019-20 

Capacity (in MW) of renewable energy equipment installed 3,213mw 222mw 2018 

P
age 45



 

26 
 

Indicator  Wales Powys Date information 
published 

Healthy life expectancy at birth including the gap between the 
least and most deprived. 

Male = 78.2              
Female = 
82.2 

Male = 80                           
Female = 
83.5 

2010-2012 

Percentage of adults who have fewer than two healthy lifestyle 
behaviours (not smoking, healthy weight, eat five fruit or 
vegetables a day, not drinking above guidelines and meet the 
physical activity guidelines). 

10% 8% 2018-2019&2019-
2020 

Mean mental well-being score for people Adults = 
51.4     

Adults = 
51.7 

Adults (2018-
2019) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
People in Powys will be connected by strong communities and a vibrant culture 
 

P
age 46



 

27 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Indicator  Wales Powys Date information 
published 

Percentage who feel able to influence decisions affecting their 
local area.  19% 18% 2018-2019 

Percentage of people satisfied with local area as a place to live. 85% 90% 2018-2019 

Percentage of people who volunteer. 26% 32% 2019-2020 

Percentage of people attending or participating in arts, culture or 
heritage activities at least three times a year 71% 71% 2019-2020 

Percentage of people satisfied with their ability to get to/ access 
the facilities and services they need 80% 66% 2018-2019 

Percentage of people agreeing that they belong to the area; that 
people from different backgrounds get on well together; and 
that people treat each other with respect 52% 60% 2018-2019 

Percentage of people who are lonely 15% 16% 2019-2020 

P
age 47



 

28 
 

Overall Assessment of our Well-being Journey  

As a PSB, we are accountable to the residents of Powys, and this annual report provides assurance of the progress we 

are making against our plan. In some cases, progress has either been very slow or delayed completely over the past 

year, due to covid becoming our main priority. However, many benefits have been realised such as continued roll out 

of electric vehicle charging points, recruitment of a community broadband officer to support communities with local 

connectivity solutions, recruitment of hundreds of new volunteers, an online careers festival and apprenticeship 

support and finalisation of the business case for the multi-agency campus in North Powys. 

These important milestones have been a step in the right direction, helping us on the journey to reach our long-term 

vision and meet the national Well-being Goals. We know that we must reflect on where we are as a partnership and 

that there are opportunities where we could be working together better, such as tackling climate change, supporting 

people living in poverty and enabling economic recovery.  

Commitment from PSB partners continues to be positive and we will continue to look for opportunities to invite new 

partners where relevant.  

We must remember that the challenge before us is about affecting longer term change, and this will take time. However, we are keen to ensure we 

build on the partnership working that has taken place in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and will look to build on these opportunities. During the 

year ahead, we will continue to develop our performance framework to ensure that we have measures in place that will enable us to quantify the 

difference our actions are making to well-being in Powys. We will also continue to take on the challenge of improving digital infrastructure in the 

county because we know this is what is important to residents. 

 

  

P
age 48



 

29 
 

Contact Us / How you can get involved 

We are still in the early part of our journey and we are committed to involving everyone along the way, the more the people of Powys are involved in 

shaping our plans the greater the impact on well-being in Powys. 

You can track progress against our Well-being Steps during the year, by viewing the reports that are presented to the PSB at their meetings – 

meeting documents can be found here: Browse meetings - Public Service Board Cyngor Sir Powys County Council (moderngov.co.uk)  

The work of the PSB Scrutiny committee is also available to view here: Browse meetings - Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee Cyngor Sir Powys 

County Council (moderngov.co.uk) 

powyspsb@powys.gov.uk  

 

01597 826165 

 

• Brecon Beacons National Park Authority http://www.beacons-npa.gov.uk  

• Dyfed Powys Police www.dyfed-powys.police.uk 

• Dyfed Powys Police and Crime Commissioner http://www.dyfedpowys-pcc.org.uk/en/  

• Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Service www.mawwfire.gov.uk  

• Natural Resources Wales https://naturalresources.wales 

• One Voice Wales  wwwonevoicewales.org.uk 

• Powys Association of Voluntary Organisations www.pavo.org.uk  

• Powys County Council www.powys.gov.uk  

• Powys Teaching Health Board www.powysthb.wales.nhs.uk  

• Wales Community Rehabilitation Company http://walescrc.co.uk  

• Welsh Government http://gov.wales 

P
age 49

https://powysintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=520
https://powysintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=697
https://powysintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=697
mailto:powyspsb@powys.gov.uk
https://naturalresources.wales/
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fonevoicewales.org.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7Csteve.boyd%40powys.gov.uk%7C0c18de5dab79499e8d7908d816828ac5%7Cc01d9ee10eb0475499ae03ae8a732b50%7C0%7C0%7C637284097218270831&sdata=wwR%2Bq1s4mgP0DuVK5br40fXpy1oPhF6xCQkKa%2FCLBvA%3D&reserved=0


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Well-Being Step 8 - Sustainable Environment Strategy
	Report
	Scrutiny of the Well-Being Steps Delivery Plans - Questions
	Scrutiny of PSB Performance - Challenge Proforma
	Well-Being Steps
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4


	4 Powys PSB Draft Annual Report 2020-21



